
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

AGENDA 
Wednesday, October 21, 2020 

5:00 p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:00 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=aGNWc0pWdUJOOXBiaXhybnJmQmRQdz09 

Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 929707 

Dial in: 
Meeting ID: 496 873 9639 
Passcode: 929707 

1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 
a. Call to order and roll call

_______Gabriel Leal, President _______Hubert “Wendell” Lower, Clerk _______Rod Boone 
_______Genaro Reyes _______Ray Odom 

2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent.
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator,

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394.
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties:
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr.
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamitlon Teachers Association.

Report out action taken in closed session.

5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE: 

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 

Page 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4968739639?pwd=aGNWc0pWdUJOOXBiaXhybnJmQmRQdz09


7.0 COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 
a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 
b. District Reports (written) 

i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 4) 
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 5) 

iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.6) 
c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 

i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 7) 
ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 8) 

iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 9) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 11) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 12) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 14) 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 15) 
b. Bond Satus (Fund 21) Update (p.16)  
c. Update on Roy Boone Memorial Barn Project – Mike Cannon (p. 19) 
d. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 20) 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. Learning Loss Mitigation Funds (p. 22) 
b. Draft 2021 HUSD Board Meeting Dates for discussion (p. 26) 

 
12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Learning Loss Mitigation Funds (p. 27) 
b. Roy Boone Memorial Barn NVBS Project Change Order #1 (p. 28) 

 
14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 

motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 (p. 30) 
b. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 (p. 36) 
c. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, October 7, 2020 (p. 38) 
d. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 41) 
e. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. none 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. none 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. none 

2. Hamilton High School 
a. none 

  

Page 2



f. Personnel Actions as Presented: 
i. New hires: 

Maxwell Montgomery Short-Term, Paraeducator/Library Media Technician 
- Position Ending December 2020 

HUSD 

Dianna Camarena Short-Term District Case Manager/Parent/Family 
Coordinator - Position Ending December 2020 

HES 

Rosa Rivera Temporary Office Assistant I - Position Ending 
December 2020 

HES 

Cierra McCarthy Short-Term District Custodian - Position Ending 
December 2020 

HUSD 

 
 

ii. Resignations/Retirement: 
Evelyn Navarro Child Nutrition Assistant (effective 10/23/20) HES 
Raegan Avrit JV Volleyball Coach (effective 10/15/20) HES 
Mark Priano Girls Varsity Basketball Coach HHS 
Elliot Delmatier Girls JV Basketball Coach HHS 

 
 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 

Page 3



Technology Report 

Board Meeting on October 21, 2020 

Frank James, Director of Technology 

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician 

 
 
Completed and in Progress Tasks – October 2020 

1. HHS Marquee: We were able to work through all the communications issues with the 

new Marquee and get the sign up and running. Both Cristina Rios and Cris Oseguera 

now have access to upload messages to the new marquee 

2. Staff Support: September ended up being a fairly busy but steady month for tech 

tickets. We ended up processing and closing around 65 tickets. 

3. Chromebooks: Office Depot was able to process our GAFE licenses and I am in the 

process of preparing them for District use. Firefly also provided an update on the K-1 

devices. We are looking at a delivery date towards the end of October or early 

November.  

4. Smart Classrooms: Room 204 has been setup on a stand so that this interactive monitor 

can be used anywhere in the classroom. The additional 5 monitors that we ordered have 

also arrived and we are installing them this week.  

Page 4



HUSD Food Service Report  

Board Meeting on October 21, 2020 

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare 

 
As of 10/12/20 we’ve served 3,260 meals in the month of October. 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

   October 1 October 2 
   448 348 

October 5 October 6 October 7 October 8 October 9 
426 370  358  436 412 

October 12 
462 

 

• We have completed two full months of school under the distance learning model with curbside 

nutrition.   

• Our numbers are gradually increasing as people get more use to the system.    

• In October we’ve also started delivering meals to students at the State Pre-School on the High 

School Campus.   

• We provide breakfast and lunch for 8 students at the State Pre-School on Mondays/Wednesdays 

and 6 students Tuesdays/Thursdays. 

• We have also personally delivered over 1000 meals to homes throughout Hamilton City to 

students who find it a hardship to make it to the curbside pick-up. 

• The foodservice staff is working hard on our plan to deliver meals to students in actual 

classrooms beginning on 10/19.   

• We will also start serving the Boys and Girls after school program starting on 10/19.   

• We are looking forward to these challenges as a way for us all to get back to some sense of 

normalcy. 

 

 

Page 5



HUSD Maintenance Report 

Board Meeting on October 21, 2020 

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation 

 
CLASSROOM PREP 

• This month we have been focused on getting the classrooms cleaned and set up for the return 

of students.  

• We have arranged the desks and removed any unused desks in keeping social distance 

parameters and more efficient cleaning.  

• With the help of several staff members in the Library Plexiglass shields were prepped and 

maintenance installed them in the classrooms. We have placed one on every other desk at this 

time. This will help with safety as we begin to have students once again. 

• We are working with IT to mount 5 more Dell monitors district wide. This is part of the ongoing 

improvement of technology throughout the district. 

CAMPUS IMPROVEMENT 

Elementary 

• We have been cleaning the grounds and getting ready for students to return.  

• We are painting doors and other areas needing attention.  

• We have added blue slats to the fencing around the Power Box area north of the 400 building.  

• The marquee is being repaired in order to display school information. 

High School 

• We are finishing the painting of the lockers. 

• Blue slats have been placed in the fencing around the water main, the pump and the power and 

gas supply area. 

• We continue to trim trees and maintain the grounds. 

Ella Barkley 

• Plans are being discussed to clean up the rose garden area, the front of the preschool sidewalk 

and removal of the old wind shades near the office.  

Adult Ed  

• I am creating a list of improvements for the building and the grounds.  

o Some of the window trim needs to be replaced.  

o We would like to paint the building. 

o We would like to move the fence closer to the building in order to add some much-

needed parking.  

o I would like to install automatic sprinklers to make the watering more efficient. 

Page 6



HAMILTON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
Board Meeting on October 21, 2020 

Submitted by 

Kathryn Thomas, Principal 

 

Enrollment: 414 

• 6-8: 145 

• Tk-5: 269 

  

Attendance:  

Grade Mode Percentage 

TK Synchronous/Asynchronous 92.74% 

K Synchronous/Asynchronous 99/44% 

1 Synchronous/Asynchronous 96.01% 

2 Synchronous/Asynchronous 96.11% 

3 Synchronous/Asynchronous 97.49% 

4 Synchronous/Asynchronous 98.51% 

5 Synchronous/Asynchronous 99.72% 

6 Synchronous/Asynchronous 98.51% 

7 Synchronous/Asynchronous 99.72% 

8 Synchronous/Asynchronous 99.72% 

 
Campus News:  

• We have been busy planning for the return of our Tk-2 students, and parents and teachers are looking 
forward to having in-person learning on Monday, 10/19/2020.  

• We have now an additional paraprofessional, Max Montgomery, and he and Mariesa Adams have been 
busy with training and testing of our initial language proficiency testing for kindergarteners. 

• Home visits and family/student support has continued to reach our struggling students and those 
disengaged. I am pleased to report that these numbers are decreasing.  

• Students were recognized for their respectful attitudes and behavior this last month and were highlighted 
on social media by their respective teachers.  

• Teachers are sending out positive postcards home, our Wolf Howl home cards, and we have also been to 
homes with rewards for students who have been making strides and improvements.  

• Parent conferences are scheduled for 10/20/2020 for Middle School.  
Instructional News: 

• Teachers are meeting with their intervention groups every Friday morning.  

• RTI (response to intervention) groups are taking place in both ELA and Math for 6th, 7th and 8th graders.  
Coming Up: 

• Halloween Parade 10/30 at 5:00 pm through Hamilton City.  

• School Site Council: 11/10/2020 

• Parent Conferences: Tk-5 (Mid-November, exact date TBD) 

Page 7



Alternative Education Report 

Board Meeting on Wednesday September 23, 2020 

Maria Reyes, Dean of Students 

 
 

Greetings from Alternative Ed  

We have completed the first quarter via distance learning.  As we start the second quarter we will focus 

on finishing strong for the Fall semester and continue to conduct home visits as needed to assist 

students and check in.   We continue with a combination of homework packets and online assignments 

for students to complete at home.   

We have set up several workshops to assist seniors with financial aid.  We have the annual 

Manufacturing Conference at Chico State that students will be able to attend virtually.  We also had 

students zoom in to a virtual workshop that focused on Suicide Awareness last month and continue to 

offer resources that focus on the social/emotional.     

We have staff members teaching English, Math, History, at Ella Barkley and combined courses of 

Science, P.E., and electives with high school.  

Enrollment: 

12 grade = 5    

 

11 grade = 3   

__________ 

                8 

    

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Hamilton Adult Education 

Board Meeting Report-October 21, 2020 

Silvia Robles/Director 

 

Completed and in Progress Tasks – October, 2020 

1. Enrollment and students served to date for all programs:  

• Citizenship .................................................................. 12  

• Computer Literacy Spring 2020 ................................. 8 (Waitlist) 

• CPR/First Aid .............................................................. 0 

• ESL .............................................................................. 20  

• Floral Design .............................................................. 10 

• Forklift Training .......................................................... 8 (October 2020) 

• High School Diploma .................................................. 18  

• Intensive ELD/Childcare Provider .............................. 0 

• Job Reentry 2020 ....................................................... 1 (Waitlist) 

TOTAL:  ...................................................... 77 

 

2. Assist participants with the barriers and challenges of distance learning  

3. Outreach and Recruit with nonprofit organizations, local businesses, and employers 

4. Facilitated Special Zoom Meeting on Extended Services provided by EDD Outreach Specialist 

5. Conducting phone calls to community members to offer information about Adult Ed Programs 

6. Provided familiarization and support with Glenn County Social Services 

7. Helped students in the preparation of forms for Citizenship 

 

Page 11



H
am

il
to

n
 U

n
if

ie
d

 S
ch

o
o

l D
is

tr
ic

t

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 -

 U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d

O
ct

o
b

er
 B

o
ar

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

1
9

-2
0

2
0

1
9

-2
0

W
o

rk
in

g
Y

e
ar

 T
o

 D
at

e
W

o
rk

in
g

Y
e

ar
 T

o
 D

at
e

B
u

d
ge

t
A

s 
o

f 
1

0
/1

4
/2

0
B

u
d

ge
t

A
s 

o
f 

1
0

/1
4

/1
9

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s

LC
FF

 S
o

u
rc

es
7

,6
9

4
,5

1
4

$
   

 
1

,2
7

8
,6

0
8

$
   

  
7

,8
3

3
,2

7
2

$
   

 
1

,2
9

1
,7

8
9

$
   

 

A
ll 

O
th

er
 F

ed
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
e

1
,1

4
6

,1
0

5
$

   
 

7
5

4
,1

9
4

$
   

   
  

3
3

2
,5

6
8

$
   

   
  

2
9

,7
3

6
$

   
   

   

O
th

er
 S

ta
te

 R
ev

en
u

e
5

5
0

,0
5

1
$

   
   

  
1

9
0

,0
3

9
$

   
   

  
5

1
8

,0
2

3
$

   
   

  
2

4
2

,3
0

6
$

   
   

 

O
th

er
 L

o
ca

l R
ev

en
u

e
1

5
0

,4
4

2
$

   
   

  
5

2
,9

5
8

$
   

   
   

 
1

0
9

,5
7

7
$

   
   

  
1

6
,7

6
7

$
   

   
   

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
n

g 
So

u
rc

es
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l R
ev

en
u

es
9

,5
4

1
,1

1
2

$
   

 
2

,2
7

5
,7

9
9

$
   

  
8

,7
9

3
,4

4
0

$
   

 
1

,5
8

0
,5

9
8

$
   

 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

d
 P

er
so

n
n

el
 S

al
ar

ie
s

3
,0

5
9

,0
8

6
$

   
 

6
2

0
,4

3
2

$
   

   
  

3
,4

7
0

,9
1

5
$

   
 

6
6

5
,6

9
3

$
   

   
 

C
la

ss
if

ie
d

 P
er

so
n

n
el

 S
al

ar
ie

s
1

,0
5

4
,3

9
9

$
   

 
2

4
1

,2
1

3
$

   
   

  
1

,1
9

6
,5

2
2

$
   

 
2

7
7

,1
8

0
$

   
   

 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 B

e
n

ef
it

s
1

,7
3

7
,1

6
0

$
   

 
4

4
4

,1
3

8
$

   
   

  
1

,9
8

6
,2

7
0

$
   

 
4

3
1

,5
3

5
$

   
   

 

B
o

o
ks

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
9

0
1

,1
1

9
$

   
   

  
3

0
7

,8
7

2
$

   
   

  
4

9
1

,3
7

4
$

   
   

  
1

4
5

,6
4

1
$

   
   

 

Tr
av

el
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
s

1
0

3
,4

5
6

$
   

   
  

8
5

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
3

2
,1

3
3

$
   

   
  

1
3

,4
5

3
$

   
   

   

D
u

es
 a

n
d

 M
em

b
er

sh
ip

s
1

4
,8

5
0

$
   

   
   

 
8

,5
4

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
1

2
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

 
9

,5
1

7
$

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
 In

su
ra

n
ce

9
3

,7
6

6
$

   
   

   
 

9
3

,7
6

6
$

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
,6

9
5

$
   

   
  

1
0

0
,6

9
5

$
   

   
 

A
ll 

O
th

er
 U

ti
lit

ie
s

2
7

5
,4

5
0

$
   

   
  

5
7

,0
1

9
$

   
   

   
 

2
7

5
,4

5
0

$
   

   
  

7
9

,4
5

7
$

   
   

   

R
en

ts
/L

ea
se

s/
R

ep
ai

rs
6

4
,7

4
5

$
   

   
   

 
1

1
,9

6
5

$
   

   
   

 
7

7
,0

9
9

$
   

   
   

 
2

2
,5

2
8

$
   

   
   

O
th

er
 O

p
er

at
in

g 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s
5

9
6

,7
3

1
$

   
   

  
1

2
5

,9
4

6
$

   
   

  
2

9
2

,6
2

6
$

   
   

  
8

4
,2

0
2

$
   

   
   

C
ap

it
al

 O
u

tl
ay

3
4

1
,7

7
1

$
   

   
  

9
3

,4
1

9
$

   
   

   
 

4
7

2
,5

5
5

$
   

   
  

8
,5

3
0

$
   

   
   

  

O
th

er
 O

u
tg

o
9

6
2

,8
3

6
$

   
   

  
1

0
,0

9
7

$
   

   
   

 
8

6
1

,5
6

5
$

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

9
,2

0
5

,3
6

9
$

   
 

2
,0

1
5

,2
7

2
$

   
  

9
,3

6
9

,2
0

4
$

   
 

1
,8

3
8

,4
3

1
$

   
 

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (
D

e
cr

ea
se

) 
in

 F
u

n
d

3
3

5
,7

4
3

$
   

   
  

2
6

0
,5

2
7

$
   

   
  

(5
7

5
,7

6
4

)
$

   
   

(2
5

7
,8

3
3

)
$

   
  

B
eg

. F
u

n
d

 B
al

. (
2

0
1

9
-2

0
 E

st
im

at
ed

 A
ct

u
al

s)
8

8
7

,3
2

2
$

   
   

  

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 E
n

d
. F

u
n

d
 B

al
.

1
,2

2
3

,0
6

5
$

   
 

Page 12



H
am

il
to

n
 U

n
if

ie
d

 S
ch

o
o

l D
is

tr
ic

t

G
e

n
e

ra
l F

u
n

d
 -

 U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r 
B

o
ar

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

1
9

-2
0

2
0

1
9

-2
0

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

Y
e

ar
 T

o
 D

at
e

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

Y
e

ar
 T

o
 D

at
e

B
u

d
ge

t
A

s 
o

f 
9

/1
5

/2
0

B
u

d
ge

t
A

s 
o

f 
9

/1
5

/1
9

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s

LC
FF

 S
o

u
rc

es
7

,1
9

7
,8

8
8

$
   

 
4

8
0

,8
8

2
$

   
   

  
7

,9
8

0
,6

4
7

$
   

 
5

1
4

,1
0

0
$

   
   

 

A
ll 

O
th

er
 F

ed
er

al
 R

ev
en

u
e

2
5

2
,7

7
0

$
   

   
  

9
,6

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
5

4
,8

6
1

$
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
th

er
 S

ta
te

 R
ev

en
u

e
4

8
3

,2
7

9
$

   
   

  
1

2
7

,9
9

0
$

   
   

  
1

9
5

,1
0

2
$

   
   

  
2

3
7

,7
8

0
$

   
   

 

O
th

er
 L

o
ca

l R
ev

en
u

e
7

4
,8

4
0

$
   

   
   

 
4

0
,2

4
0

$
   

   
   

 
6

9
,8

4
0

$
   

   
   

 
1

,4
0

8
$

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
n

g 
So

u
rc

es
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l R
ev

en
u

es
8

,0
0

8
,7

7
7

$
   

 
6

5
8

,7
7

3
$

   
   

  
8

,5
0

0
,4

5
0

$
   

 
7

5
3

,2
8

8
$

   
   

 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

d
 P

er
so

n
n

el
 S

al
ar

ie
s

2
,9

4
4

,8
8

6
$

   
 

3
3

4
,1

2
7

$
   

   
  

3
,4

5
2

,7
9

3
$

   
 

3
5

5
,9

1
9

$
   

   
 

C
la

ss
if

ie
d

 P
er

so
n

n
el

 S
al

ar
ie

s
9

4
7

,5
5

8
$

   
   

  
1

5
7

,7
2

4
$

   
   

  
1

,1
9

3
,2

1
3

$
   

 
1

7
8

,4
9

8
$

   
   

 

Em
p

lo
ye

e
 B

e
n

ef
it

s
1

,6
5

8
,1

5
0

$
   

 
2

6
8

,9
4

4
$

   
   

  
1

,9
8

5
,5

6
8

$
   

 
2

6
4

,9
2

3
$

   
   

 

B
o

o
ks

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
4

1
4

,7
5

5
$

   
   

  
1

6
9

,3
6

3
$

   
   

  
4

9
8

,8
9

3
$

   
   

  
1

1
1

,0
5

4
$

   
   

 

Tr
av

el
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
s

1
1

3
,5

5
6

$
   

   
  

4
9

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
2

0
,2

8
7

$
   

   
  

7
,7

0
8

$
   

   
   

  

D
u

es
 a

n
d

 M
em

b
er

sh
ip

s
1

4
,8

5
0

$
   

   
   

 
8

,5
4

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
9

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
,9

9
5

$
   

   
   

  

O
th

er
 In

su
ra

n
ce

9
3

,7
6

6
$

   
   

   
 

9
3

,7
6

6
$

   
   

   
 

8
9

,8
1

9
$

   
   

   
 

1
0

0
,6

9
5

$
   

   
 

A
ll 

O
th

er
 U

ti
lit

ie
s

2
7

5
,4

5
0

$
   

   
  

4
3

,6
4

7
$

   
   

   
 

2
0

5
,5

0
0

$
   

   
  

6
2

,3
0

4
$

   
   

   

R
en

ts
/L

ea
se

s/
R

ep
ai

rs
6

4
,7

4
5

$
   

   
   

 
9

,4
1

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
7

7
,2

9
9

$
   

   
   

 
1

7
,2

3
7

$
   

   
   

O
th

er
 O

p
er

at
in

g 
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s
3

3
3

,7
6

6
$

   
   

  
9

2
,9

5
1

$
   

   
   

 
2

9
3

,8
8

1
$

   
   

  
1

0
4

,0
9

3
$

   
   

 

C
ap

it
al

 O
u

tl
ay

3
0

6
,7

2
8

$
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

O
th

er
 O

u
tg

o
9

0
7

,5
8

6
$

   
   

  
5

,3
1

4
$

   
   

   
   

 
8

0
8

,9
4

6
$

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

8
,0

7
5

,7
9

6
$

   
 

1
,1

8
4

,2
9

7
$

   
  

8
,7

3
5

,6
9

9
$

   
 

1
,2

0
5

,4
2

6
$

   
 

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

 (
D

e
cr

ea
se

) 
in

 F
u

n
d

(6
7

,0
1

9
)

$
   

   
   

(5
2

5
,5

2
4

)
$

   
   

 
(2

3
5

,2
4

9
)

$
   

   
(4

5
2

,1
3

8
)

$
   

  

B
eg

. F
u

n
d

 B
al

. (
2

0
1

9
-2

0
 E

st
im

at
ed

 A
ct

u
al

s)
6

8
7

,7
7

9
$

   
   

  

P
ro

je
ct

e
d

 E
n

d
. F

u
n

d
 B

al
.

6
2

0
,7

6
0

$
   

   
  

Page 13



HUSD Superintendent Report  

Board Meeting on October 21, 2020 

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D. 

We are eagerly anticipating the return to school for our Kindergarten-5th Grade students in the 
coming weeks!! Beginning on Monday, October 19, we will have our Kindergarden-2nd Grade 
Students return and then Monday, November 2nd, our 3rd-5th grade students will be back on 
campus.  All grade levels will be at one-half classroom capacity (or less) and each student will be 
in class two days a week so we can get our new rhythm and routine down!  Also beginning Friday, 
October 23rd, the District will welcome small cohorts of TK-12th grade students for intervention.    

District Highlights for September & October:

 

● The Maintenance Department has been hard at work preparing our classrooms for 
the return of students.  They have removed one-half of the desks (or tables) in every 
classroom, distanced the remaining desks 6’ apart, have installed plexiglass shield on 
desks, have begun a through cleaning routine mid-day and in the evenings, and have 
install HEPA Air Filters in all classrooms. 

● We had our Quarterly Cabinet Meeting on Friday, October 9th.  It was very interesting 
to look at these Targets that were created before our current budget situation and 
COVID.  Although we are not as far as I would have expected due to both the budget 
and COVID, we are maintaining our 3 Year Vision! 

o 10 Year District Target 
▪ Returning to a Distinguished School District through a focus on: 

● Dual Immersion, 
● All Students Being at Standard,  
● All Students College and Career Ready,  

o Our 3 Year Vision (to reach the 10 Year Target) 
▪ Review of the identified items both in Educational Services and 

District Services identifying what has not been started, What is in 
Progress, and Which items have been accomplished. 

o Individual Focus towards Meeting our Target 
▪ What steps can we each individually do to reach the 3 Year Target. 

   
● Make sure to Follow us on: 

o HUSD App: Download from App Store or our website 
o Instagram: HamiltonUnified 
o Twitter: @hamiltonunified 
o Facebook: HamiltonUnifiedSchool District 

 

Upcoming Events: 

● October 19th: K-2 Return to School 

● October 30th: Halloween Carnival 

● October 23rd: K-12 Small Group In-person Interventions begins 

● November 2nd: 3-5 Return to School 

● November 11th-No School Veteran’s Day 

● November 23rd-27th: Thanksgiving Break 

● December 9th: HUSD Board Meeting in HHS 

Library 

Page 14



H
U

S
D

 E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T 
O

V
E
R

 S
IX

 Y
E
A

R
S

2
0
1
5
-2

0
2
1

3
0
4

H
H

S
2
6
4

H
H

S
2
6
9

H
H

S
2
8
6

H
H

S
2
6
5

H
H

S
2
8
7

H
H

S

9
E
B

H
S

1
4

E
B

H
S

1
2

E
B

H
S

9
E
B

H
S

1
3

E
B

H
S

8
E
B

H
S

K
-5

K
-5

2
7
9

K
-5

2
9
2

K
-5

2
7
2

K
-5

2
6
9

K
-5

6
-8

6
-8

1
3
3

6
-8

1
2
5

6
-8

1
5
3

6
-8

1
4
5

6
-8

7
2

8
E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
6

9
2

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
6

9
3

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

1
2

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

0
3

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T
7

0
9

E
N

R
O

LL
M

E
N

T

7
1

2
.2

6
A

D
A

6
6

9
.2

9
A

D
A

6
7

2
.2

1
A

D
A

6
8

7
.8

7
A

D
A

6
6

8
.3

6
A

D
A

6
9

3
.1

A
D

A

E
n

ro
llm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 A
D

A
 t

o
ta

ls
 a

b
o

v
e

 a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 P
2

 D
a

ta
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
x

c
e

p
t 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

y
e

a
r 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

#
S
TU

G
R

A
D

E
#

S
TU

G
R

A
D

E
#

S
TU

G
R

A
D

E

1
3

TK
1
3

TK
1
2
.1

1
1
3

TK
1
2
.0

8

4
2

K
4
2

K
4
1
.1

1
4
3

K
4
1
.3

0

4
1

1
4
0

1
4
0
.5

3
4
0

1
4
0
.1

6

4
7

2
4
5

2
4
3
.1

1
4
3

2
4
2
.9

5

4
0

3
4
0

3
3
7
.8

4
4
0

3
3
8
.1

4

4
2

4
4
2

4
4
0
.1

1
4
2

4
4
0
.5

1

5
0

5
4
9

5
4
8
.0

5
4
8

5
4
7
.8

1

4
1

6
4
1

6
3
9
.2

1
4
1

6
3
9
.7

8

6
0

7
5
9

7
5
9
.6

8
6
0

7
5
9
.5

4

4
4

8
4
4

8
4
3
.0

5
4
4

8
4
3
.3

2

7
4

9
7
6

9
7
3
.6

8
7
7

9
7
4
.3

5

6
5

1
0

6
6

1
0

6
2
.6

3
6
7

1
0

6
3
.6

2

8
0

1
1

7
9

1
1

7
6
.8

5
7
7

1
1

7
7
.4

1

7
4

1
2

7
4

1
2

7
0
.5

7
7
4

1
2

7
2
.1

3

7
1

3
TO

TA
L

7
1

0
TO

TA
L

6
8

8
.5

3
7

0
9

TO
TA

L
6

9
3

.1

4
1
4

4
1
5

2
0

2
0

-2
1

2
0

2
0

-2
1

8
/1

1
-8

/1
7

/2
0

8
/0

5
-8

/3
0

/2
0

0
9

/0
7

-1
0

/0
2

A
D

A

2
0

2
0

-2
1

A
D

A

5

2
0
2
0
-2

1
 A

D
A

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 M
o

n
th

 2
 r

e
p

o
rt

2
0

1
9

-2
0

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
6

-1
7

2
0

1
5

-1
6

1
2

3
4

6

2
0

2
0

-2
1

7
2

8

6
9

2
6

9
3

7
1

2

7
0

3

7
0

9
7

1
2

.2
6

6
6

9
.2

9
6

7
2

.2
1

6
8

7
.8

7

6
6

8
.3

6

6
9

3
.1

2
0

1
5

-1
6

2
0

1
6

-1
7

2
0

1
7

-1
8

2
0

1
8

-1
9

2
0

1
9

-2
0

District Enrollment & ADA

En
ro

llm
e

n
t 

 A
D

A

En
ro

llm
en

t 
&

 A
D

A
 b

y 
Sc

h
o

o
l Y

ea
r

Page 15



 B
u

ild
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 2
1

 (
B

o
n

d
) 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

fo
r 

2
0

2
0

-2
1

Fo
r 

H
U

SD
 B

o
ar

d
 M

e
et

in
g 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

1
, 2

0
2

0

P
O

 #
D

at
e

V
e

n
d

o
r

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

P
V

 1
7

/2
2

/2
0

2
0

B
an

k 
o

f 
N

ew
 Y

o
rk

 M
el

lo
n

P
ay

in
g 

A
ge

n
t 

Fe
e;

 R
E:

 E
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
2

0
1

8
, G

O
 B

o
n

d
s,

 S
er

ie
s 

A
7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

2
1

-1
5

0
8

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

3
,3

6
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
1

-1
5

0
9

/1
6

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
1

-1
5

2
8

/1
9

/2
0

2
0

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c

Fi
n

al
 s

u
rv

ey
 a

n
d

 m
ap

 p
ac

ka
ge

 f
o

r 
co

u
n

ty
 r

ec
o

rd
er

1
,6

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
4

8
9

/2
/2

0
2

0
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 V
al

le
y 

M
ir

ro
r

Le
ga

l a
d

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 h

ea
ri

n
g 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 s

ch
o

o
l e

xp
an

si
o

n
8

2
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
9

/2
3

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l f
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
4

9
0

.5
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

P
V

 1
2

1
0

/7
/2

0
2

0
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
o

f 
To

xi
c 

Su
b

st
an

ce
s 

C
o

n
tr

o
l -

 D
TS

C
P

ro
p

er
ty

 p
u

rc
h

as
e 

te
st

in
g

5
7

7
.5

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l e
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 1

0
/1

3
/2

0
1

1
,3

9
0

.0
8

$
   

   
   

  

Page 16



 B
u

ild
in

g 
Fu

n
d

 2
1

 (
B

o
n

d
) 

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

9
-2

0

Fo
r 

H
U

SD
 B

o
ar

d
 M

e
e

ti
n

g 
A

u
gu

st
 2

6
, 2

0
2

0

P
O

 #
D

at
e

V
e

n
d

o
r

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

4
2

3
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
8

0
2

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
1

0
/3

0
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

1
,1

2
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

1
/1

3
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

1
6

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

2
,9

6
9

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
1

/8
/2

0
2

0
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

/1
1

0
3

8
0

7
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
5

/6
/2

0
2

0
D

an
n

is
 W

o
liv

er
 K

el
le

y
Le

ga
l F

ee
s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 la
n

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 -
 m

at
te

r 
en

d
in

g 
5

1
8

7
5

4
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
2

3
5

/2
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
1

,8
3

3
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/2
4

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
1

,1
9

4
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
2

,1
7

9
.5

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

4
2

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

D
an

n
is

 W
o

liv
er

 K
el

le
y

Le
ga

l F
ee

s 
re

la
te

d
 t

o
 la

n
d

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 -

 m
at

te
r 

en
d

in
g 

5
1

8
9

,3
1

7
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,0
5

7
.6

3
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,4
4

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
1

0
/1

6
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

2
,9

6
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
1

0
/2

3
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
7

1
.6

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
2

,9
4

0
.5

8
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

3
9

7
2

/5
/2

0
2

0
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

1
2

,8
9

5
.9

3
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

3
9

7
2

/5
/2

0
2

0
H

o
ld

re
ge

 &
 K

u
ll 

(N
V

5
)

P
re

lim
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
#0

3
2

-2
3

0
-0

1
5

5
6

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

3
9

7
3

/1
8

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
4

,4
7

5
.1

2
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
3

/1
8

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,2
5

2
.3

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

3
9

7
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

H
o

ld
re

ge
 &

 K
u

ll 
(N

V
5

)
P

re
lim

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

#0
3

2
-2

3
0

-0
1

5
1

,3
6

6
.9

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

5
1

5
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

4
,6

9
2

.0
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
1

0
/2

/2
0

1
9

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

5
,0

0
9

.4
8

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 R

ev
ie

w
; e

xp
an

si
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
9

,6
6

7
.9

8
$

   
   

   
   

 

1
9

5
1

5
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
P

la
ce

w
o

rk
s 

In
c.

C
EQ

A
 R

ev
ie

w
; e

xp
an

si
o

n
 p

ro
je

ct
1

4
,7

1
5

.5
9

$
   

   
   

  

1
9

5
1

5
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

1
5

,9
3

3
.6

9
$

   
   

   
  

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

4
3

0
.4

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

9
,3

4
1

.1
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

1
9

5
1

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

P
la

ce
w

o
rk

s 
In

c.
C

EQ
A

 R
ev

ie
w

; e
xp

an
si

o
n

 p
ro

je
ct

2
,5

8
8

.2
6

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
0

2
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

To
xi

c 
Su

b
st

an
ce

s 
C

o
n

tr
o

l -
 D

TS
C

P
ro

p
er

ty
 P

u
rc

h
as

e 
Te

st
in

g
1

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  

2
0

2
1

9
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,0

4
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
9

/2
7

/2
0

1
9

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
1

1
/1

3
/2

0
1

9
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

fo
r 

H
H

S 
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
4

,4
8

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
1

9
1

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
LL

C
C

o
n

su
lt

in
g 

fo
r 

H
H

S 
Ex

p
an

si
o

n
 P

ro
je

ct
3

,0
8

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
1

9
1

/1
5

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

2
,5

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
2

/1
2

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

2
,3

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
3

/1
1

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,4

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
4

/1
5

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,3

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
5

/2
0

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

3
,9

2
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
1

9
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

Ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

LL
C

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
fo

r 
H

H
S 

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

5
,1

8
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

2
4

7
1

1
/2

0
/2

0
1

9
Ti

m
io

s 
Ti

tl
e

Ti
tl

e 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

n
ew

 p
ro

p
er

ty
4

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
8

7
1

0
/9

/2
0

1
9

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c.

Su
rv

ey
 f

o
r 

la
n

d
3

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

2
8

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

R
o

b
er

ts
o

n
 E

ri
ck

so
n

 In
c.

Su
rv

ey
 f

o
r 

la
n

d
3

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 

2
0

4
9

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

In
te

gr
at

ed
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 P

la
n

n
in

g 
&

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
B

u
ild

in
g/

Ex
p

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

4
,8

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

P
V

 9
8

3
/1

1
/2

0
2

0
Sa

cr
am

en
to

 V
al

le
y 

M
ir

ro
r

Le
ga

l A
d

 -
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
P

re
p

. o
f 

a 
P

re
lim

. E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l A
ss

es
s.

9
0

.2
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

P
V

 1
1

9
6

/1
7

/2
0

2
0

Sa
cr

am
en

to
 V

al
le

y 
M

ir
ro

r
Le

ga
l A

d
 -

 E
xp

an
si

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

1
3

9
.4

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l e
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s 
th

ro
u

gh
 6

/3
0

/2
0

2
0

1
9

3
,8

6
1

.5
4

$
   

   
  

Page 17



2018-19 Bond and Property Expenses

PO # Vendor Description Amount Reimbursable

19-567 California Appraisals Appraisal for future site 4,000.00$   Yes

19-134 Educational Facilities Program Management LLC Bond Development & Election 34,440.00$ Yes

PV#69 Glenn County Elections Bond Election Fees 3,466.00$   No

19-309 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Environmental Site Assessment 4,600.00$   Yes

19-397 Holdrege & Kull (NV5) Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 4,060.62$   Yes

19-524 HUSD Revolving Fund New property project 1,500.00$   Yes

19-514 Placeworks Inc. Title 5 Risk Assessment 15,210.00$ Yes

19-515 Placeworks Inc. CEQA Review; Expansion Project 5,877.75$   Yes

18-639 School Works Inc. Development Fee Study 6,000.00$   No

19-596 Western Valuation Professional Appraisal - new property 3,500.00$ Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10518 Property Purchase Negotiation 6,470$         Yes

423 Dannis Woliver Kelley matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discussions 1,017$         No

Total Amount Expended 90,140.87$ 

Reimbursable Total 79,657.87$ 

2018-2019 Bond and Property Related Expenses

Page 18



MEMORIAL BARN CTE PROJECT:

APPROVED CONSTRUCTION COST BUDGET & SCHEDULE

CONSTRUCTION COST BUDGET ACTUAL NOTES

GENERAL CONTRACTOR 212,920$                      180,110$                   Deductive Alternate: Delete enclosed buiding area 

North Valley Building Systems of 4" washed chip sand -$5900. Approved 7-22-2020

Change Order Request #1 5,900$                       Add 4" Washed Chip Sand to Interior; 3/4" base Rock at Exterior

On 10/21/2020 Board Agenda for consideration

SITE CONTRACTOR 0$                                  0$                               Included in NVBS Bid

OTHER SPECIALITY 45,000$                        -$                            Pending project completion-

CONTRACTOR(S) $20,110 Quote rec'd 6/17/2020

Sheep Pens-NE Gate

CONTINGENCY (15.0%) 25,792$                        27,017$                     15% Contingency

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL 283,712$            213,027$          

SUPPORT COST

A & E FEES (9.0%) 25,534$                        8,000$                       Not to Exceed Amount-Approved 7-22-2020

Robertson Erikson

SITE INSPECTOR (1.25%) 3,546$                          0$                               N/A

DSA & CDE FEES (0.75%) 2,128$                          0$                               N/A

TESTING LAB (0.75%) 2,128$                          1,200$                       Not to Exceed Amount-Approved 8-26-2020

M.T. Hall

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT (3.5%) 9,930$                          5,600$                       Not to Exceed Amount-Approved 7-22-2020

EFPM/LLC

CONTINGENCY (15.0%) 4,327$                          2,220$                       15% Contingency

SUPPORT TOTAL 47,593$              17,020$            

PROJECT TOTAL 331,305$            230,047$          

FUNDING AVAILABLE 250,503$            

FUND BALANCE 20,456$              Assumes COR #1 is Approved by Board on 10/21/2020

SCHEDULE

DEMOLITION COMPLETED AUGUST 25, 2020

SITEWORK INITIAL GRADING COMPLETED OCTOBER 8, 2020

FOUNDATIONS COMPLETED OCTOBER 13, 2020

BUILDING START WEEK OF OCTOBER 19, 2020

COMPLETION WEEK OF DECEMBER 14, 2020

October 21, 2020Page 19



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

October 21, 2020 

 
CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE-(Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel) 

CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS 

DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NV5) 

• Final PEA completed; submitted to DTSC 2/11/2020.  Required 30-day Public Comment Period 

opened 2/17/2020; closed 3/20/2020.  Public Comment Hearing completed at Board Meeting 

2/26/2020.  No adverse comments from DTSC received; No Further Action (Final Approval 

Letter) from DTSC (see attached) received 4/29/2020.  No further action required by the District; 

requirements completed. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PLACEWORKS) 

• CEQA Final Report now completed; Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration on District 

Agenda for review 4/22/2020 (see separate Agenda item). Notice of Intent to Adopt and 30 

Public Comment period from 4/20/2020 through 5/20/2020; no public comments received to 

date. Board adoption and final Notice of Determination on August 26, 2020 Board Agenda for 

approval.  Final Notices of Determination filed with Glenn County Planning Commission ant 

California Office of Planning and Research.  CEQA requirements completed. 

TITLE 5 REPORTS (PLACEWORKS)- 

• Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY-No mitigation measures 
required. 

• Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY:  No special risks or mitigation 
required.  

• Dam Inundation Study: Research & Report Complete.  SUMMARY: Dam Inundation: No special 

risks or mitigation required. 

EDUCATIONAL SPECIFICATIONS (iep2) 

• Initial Steering Committee Meeting held 2/11/2020; meetings now being scheduled for site 

faculty, support staff, administrators, parents, students and community members. 

Teleconference staff scoping meetings scheduled for November-December 2020. 

GEOLOGICAL HAZARDS STUDIES (EFPM/LLC) 

• Geological Hazards Study completed by EFPM/LLC after consultation with Department of 

Education/Facilities Division; on Board Agenda of August 26, 2020 for review and approval.  Now 

in review at CDE.   

  

Page 20



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS 

BOARD INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEM 

October 21, 2020 

 
FINAL SITE SURVEY 

• Fieldwork for final site survey for escrow closure and recording completed by Robertson 

Erickson Surveying & Engineering in August 2020; final report on hold pending other issue 

resolution. 

PLANNING COMMISSION SUBMITTAL (EFPM/LLC) 

• Request for Glenn County Planning Commission review (per Section 21151.2. Public Resources 

Code) submitted on 6/10/2020, with a requested return within 45 days. Public hearing and 

comments by Planning Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see attached 

Glenn County Planning Commission Staff Report). Planning Commission submission requirement 

completed. 

WILLIAMSON ACT FILINGS (EFPM/LLC) 

• Initial Williamson Act abatement filings to County Planning Office and State Department of 

Conservation reviewed by District Legal Counsel and submitted to the State Department of 

Conservation and the Glenn County Planning Commission on 6/15/2020. Approval by 

Department of Conservation on 7/23/2020; review and comment by Glenn County Planning 

Commission at its August 19, 2020 Commission Meeting (see above).  Department must file 

copy of final executed purchase agreement with Department of Conservation. 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION FILINGS 

• CDE Initial Filings & SFPD 4.03 now being prepared, including all completed studies/documents 

noted above. 

 

Page 21



 
 

Learning   Loss   Mi�ga�on   Funding   

CARES   Act   Funding   Type:  Alloca�on   Based   on:  
Deadline   to  

Spend:  
Amount   to  

District:  

Coronavirus   Relief   Fund   (CR)  Supplemental   and   Concentra�on   Funding  12/30/2020  $706,873.00  

State   General   Fund   (GF)  Propor�on   of   LCFF   Statewide   Calcula�on  6/30/2021  $66,772.00  

Governor's   Emergency  
Educa�on   Relief   Fund   (GEER)  

Special   Educa�on   count   from   pupils   age  
3-22,   does   not   need   to   be   spent   directly   on  
Special   Educa�on  

9/30/2022  $45,541.00  

h�ps://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/learningloss.asp  

Other   Funding   Sources:  

CARES   Act   Funding   Type:  Alloca�on   Based   on:  
Deadline   to  

Spend:  
Amount   to  

District:  

Elementary   and   Secondary  
School   Emergency   Relief  
Fund   (ESSER)  

2019   Title   1   Alloca�on   (based   on   number  
of   students   at   the   elementary   school  
receiving   free   or   reduced   lunch,   foster  
youth,   homeless   youth,   and   English  
Language   Learners.  

9/30/2022  $149,802.00  

 

Allowable   Expenditures   by   Funding   Source  
 
Learning   Loss   Mi�ga�on:   GF,   GEER   and   CR:  

● Addressing   learning   loss   or   accelera�ng   progress   to   close   learning   gaps   through   the  
implementa�on,   expansion,   or   enhancement   of   learning   supports.  

● Extending   the   instruc�onal   minutes,   �me,   or   school   year   to   increase   the   amount   of   instruc�onal  
�me   or   services   provided   to   pupils   based   on   their   learning   needs.  

● Providing   addi�onal   academic   services   for   pupils,   such   as   diagnos�c   assessments   of   pupil  
learning   needs   or   intensive   instruc�on   for   addressing   gaps   in   core   academic   skills.  

● Providing   addi�onal   instruc�onal   materials   or   supports.  
● Providing   devices   or   connec�vity   for   in-classroom   and   distance   learning.  
● Providing   health,   counseling,   or   mental   health   services.  
● Professional   development   opportuni�es   to   help   teachers   and   parents   support   distance-learning.  
● Access   to   school   breakfast   and   lunch   programs.  
● Pupil   trauma   and   social-emo�onal   learning.  
● Public   health   tes�ng,   personal   protec�ve   equipment,   supplies   to   sani�ze   and   clean   the   facili�es.  

Learning   Loss   Mi�ga�on:   CR   only  
● Administra�ve   Expenses  
● Budgeted   Personnel   and   Services   Diverted   to   a   Substan�ally   Different   Use  
● COVID-19   Tes�ng   and   Contact   Tracing  

Page 22

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/cr/learningloss.asp


 
 

● Facilita�ng   Distance   Learning  
● Food   Programs  
● Improve   Telework   Capabili�es   of   Public   Employees  
● Medical   Expenses  
● Personal   Protec�ve   Equipment   (PPE)  
● Public   Health   Expenses  
● Custom   Category   (such   as   crisis   counseling,   anything   not   in   the   above   categories)  

 
Elementary   and   Secondary   School   Emergency   Relief   Fund   (ESSER)  

● Coordina�on   of   preparedness   and   response   efforts   of   LEAs  
● Resources   necessary   to   address   the   needs   of   their   individual   schools  
● Ac�vi�es   to   address   the   unique   needs   of   low-income   students,   children   with   disabili�es,   English  

learners,   racial   and   ethnic   minori�es,homeless   students,   and   foster   care   youth  
● Developing   and   implemen�ng   procedures   and   systems   to   improve   the   preparedness   and  

response   efforts   of   LEAs  
● Planning   for   and   coordina�ng   on   long-term   closures  
● Staff   training   and   professional   development   to   reduce   the   spread   of   infec�ous   disease  
● Purchasing   cleaning   supplies  
● Purchasing   educa�onal   technology  
● Mental   health   services   and   supports  
● Summer   learning   and   supplemental   a�er-school   programs  
● Discre�onary   spending   to   address   the   needs   of   individual   schools  
● Other   ac�vi�es   that   are   necessary   to   maintain   the   opera�on   and   con�nuity   of   services   in   LEAs  

and   to   con�nuing   the   employment   of   their   exis�ng   staff  
 

Page 23



Proposed COVID-19 Fall 2020 Expenditure Recommendations                                                                                
Presented to Board July 22 , Updated 8.14.20, & Updated 10.13.20

Personnel
7.22.20 Proposed 8.14.20 Update Fall 2020 

Expenditures Page
10.13.20 Update 
to be spent by 

12/30/2020
Provide 3 additional Professional Development Days 
(Aug 6, 7, and Sept 21) for all Staff $82,000.00 $82,000.00

$202,767.10

Extended Learning HS: Funds to be used for additional 
instructional time for students need additional academic 
support $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Extended Learning HES: Funds to be used for 
additional instructional time for students need additional 
academic support. $10,000.00 $10,000.00
Hire 4 Daily substitutes for the Fall $40,000.00 $67,000.00
Community Liaison Support for Elementary (4 hrs daily) $15,000.00 $15,000.00
*Hire 4 Custodial staff (4 hrs daily) $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Hire 1 part time cafeteria support staff (4 hrs daily) TBD $7,000.00
Hire Special Education Paraprofessional TBD $8,000.00
Hire 2 Para Professionals (4 hrs daily) $30,000.00 $15,000.00
Hire LVN/Health Professional for District TBD $10,000.00

Total $217,000.00 $254,000.00 $202,767.10 $0.00

Books and Supplies
7.22.20 Proposed 8.14.20 Update Fall 2020 

Expenditures Page
10.13.20 Update 
to be spent by 

12/30/2020
Upgrade Student Technology (1:1 Chromebooks all 
students, Safety Filter) $55,000.00 $55,000.00

$158,959.00

Upgrade Teacher Technology (New devices for 
distance learning) $40,000.00 $40,000.00
Purchase additonal Instructional Resources $75,000.00 $75,000.00
Read 180 (Intervention K-12) $75,000.00
Capturing Kids Hearts (Social Emotional Support Staff 
and Students) $25,000.00
Indpendent Study Program (6th-12th) $15,000.00
Elevation (ELD Curriculum) $15,000.00
Follett/Destiny (Online Library Access) $10,000.00

Total: $170,000.00 $170,000.00 $158,959.00 $140,000.00

Services and Other Expenses
7.22.20 Proposed 8.14.20 Update Fall 2020 

Expenditures Page
10.13.20 Update 
to be spent by 

12/30/2020
Boys and Girls Club Student Enrichment during school 
day $40,000.00 $40,000.00

$84,510.00

Additional GCOE Clinician Support (HHS: 3 hrs day, 5 
days week; HES: 3 hrs day, 3 days week) $65,000.00 $65,000.00
Upgrade Technology Infrastructure (Network) $35,000.00
Upgrade Student Communication (Phone System) $55,000.00
Floor Scrubber (Sanitation of Cafeteria and Gym) $6,000.00
Vacuum Cleaners (Portable x2) $1,000.00

Total: $105,000.00 $105,000.00 $84,510.00 $97,000.00

Total Proposed: $492,000.00 $529,000.00 $237,000.00
Actual Spent/Encumbered/or Future Cost that 

is budgeted for as of 10/8/20: $446,236.10

Coronavirus Relief (CR) Fund: $706,873.00
Total Spent/Anticipated to be Spent: $683,236.10

Funds Available to Spend by 12/30 from 
Coronavirus Relief (CR) Fund: $23,636.90

Page 24



Actual COVID-19 Fall 2020 Expenditures as of Oct 8, 2020                                                                                
Presented to Board 10.21.20 

Expense Category Description
Actual 

Expenditures 
as of 10/8

Current 
Encumbrances 

as of 10/8

Estimated 
Future Costs 

from 10/9-
12/30/20

Total

Certificated Salaries

Added 3 Professional Development 
Days (Aug 6, 7, and Sept 21) for all 
Staff 

$67,788 $0

$0

Hired Long Term Substitutes for the 
Fall $32,400

Diverted 20% of counselors salaries to 
LLM $10,640

TOTAL $67,788 $0 $43,040 $110,828

Classified Salaries

Added 3 Professional Development 
Days (Aug 6, 7, and Sept 21) for all 
Staff 

$14,948 $0

$0

Hired a PT Para, PT Custodian and PT 
Child Nutrition Assistant for the Fall $9,720

Hired a FT Coummunity Liason to 
support HES for the Fall $16,845

Hired a PT Custodian for the Fall $3,240
TOTAL $14,948 $0 $29,805 $44,753

Benefits
STRS, PERS, UI, OASDI/MC, H&W, 
WC $20,786 $26,400

TOTAL $20,786 $0 $26,400 $47,186

Books & Supplies

Teacher and staff laptops $36,373

$0

K-1 Chromebooks and cases $4,825 $34,159
Air purifiers $36,569
Desk shields $22,646 $4,410
Online Curriculum - Cengage, 
Goodheart, Saavas and Music First

$15,735 $4,242

Supplies for students at home
Headsets for zoom and webinars
Student Classroom Safety Supplies
Cleaning Supplies
Masks/Visors
Activity tables for K
Food packaging materials for non 
congregate meals
Hand sanitizer and  dispensers

TOTAL $79,579 $79,380 $0 $158,959

Services & Other

Go Guardian Suite - content 
filtering/harm prevention $11,093

$5,250

$0

Boys and Girls Club Student 
Enrichment during school day

$802

$40,000

Additional GCOE Clinician Support 
(HHS: 3 hrs day, 5 days week; HES: 3 
hrs day, 3 days week)

$21,365

Cleaning company for Friday's through 
11/20/20 (start 10/16/20) $4,200

Wash station services $1,800
Zoom accounts for large meetings

$0Chrome licenses for donated 
Chromebooks
See Saw - learning and assessments

TOTAL $11,895 $5,250 $67,365 $84,510

TOTAL COVID EXPENDITURES: $194,996 $84,630 $166,610 $446,236

Page 25



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2021 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE AND AGENDA ITEM DEADLINES 
 

Proposed 2021 Schedule for Discussion at Regular Board Meeting 10/21/2020 

 
Time: 6:00 p.m. (public session begins at 6:00 pm., but no later than 6:30 p.m. 

unless otherwise noted on agenda) 
Location: Hamilton High School Library 

620 Canal Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 
When: Fourth Wednesday of the month* 

 

 
 

BOARD MEETING DATE 

 
 

REGULAR OR 
SPECIAL 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 
DEADLINE TO 

DISTRICT OFFICE BY 
3:00 P.M. 

 

 
AGENDA REVIEW: 
BOARD PRESIDENT 

AND 
SUPERINTENDENT 
(subject to change) 

January 27, 2021 
 

Regular January 7, 2021 January 11, 2021 

February 24, 2021 
 

Regular February 11, 2021 February 16, 2021 

March 10, 2021 
2nd Interim & LCAP Stakeholders 

Special February 18, 2021 February 22, 2021 

March 24, 2021 
 

Regular March 11, 2021 March 15, 2021 

April 28, 2021 
 

Regular April 1, 2021 April 12, 2021 

May 19, 2021* 
(note 3rd Wednesday) 

Regular April 29, 2021 May 3, 2021 

June 9, 2021 
LCAP/Budget Hearing 

Special May 20, 2021 May 24, 2021 

June 23, 2021 
Approval of LCAP and Budget 

Regular June 10, 2021 June 14, 2021 

July 28, 2021 
 

Regular July 15, 2021 July 19, 2021 
 

August 25, 2021 
 

Regular August 12, 2021 August 16, 2021 

September 22, 2021 
 

Regular September 9, 2021 September 13, 2021 

October 6, 2021 
GANN Limit & Unaudited Actuals 

Special September 27, 2021 September 23, 2021 

October 27, 2021 
 

Regular October 14, 2021 October 18, 2021 

December 8, 2021 
Annual Reorganization & 1st Interim 

Regular November 18, 2021 November 29, 2021 

 
*Dates and times of meetings and workshop(s) are subject to change. 
 
  

Page 26



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Agenda Item Number: 13a Date: October 21, 2020 

 

Agenda Item Description: Learning Loss Mitigation Funds Update 

Background:  
 
In response to the impact of COVID on Public Schools, the State and Federal Government have 
allocated funds to schools.  Depending on the funding source, these funds need to be spent as soon 
as December 30, 2020.  The plan for these funds has been presented to the school board several 
times including our regularly scheduled board meeting on July 22nd and updated on August 14th.   
 
This most recent update shows the initial plan for expenditures, the August update and an updated 
plan for the expenditure of the remaining funds. 

Status: Pending Board Approval 

Fiscal Impact: Need 

Educational Impact: Need 

Recommendation: Approval 

 

 

 

Page 27



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Agenda Item Number: 13b Date: October 21, 2020 

 

Agenda Item Description: Roy Boone Memorial Barn NVBS Project Change Order #1 

Background: As part of the original proposal   from North Valley Building Systems for the construction 
of the Roy Boone Memorial Livestock Barn, 4” of Chip Sand Flooring was originally included in the 
proposal.  The District requested that the item be removed from the proposal for project budgetary 
purposes, with the idea that, should the project not meet any unexpected costs, the item could be 
added back in using project contingency funds. If the contingency was used for unexpected expenses, 
the Ag Program staff and students indicated that they could install the flooring as a class project. 
Foundation and utility trenching and installation are now being completed, and no unforeseen 
circumstances have arisen. No other costs are anticipated. The contingency funds are now available 
to cover the cost of the sand flooring, and the CTE Program head has requested that they be used for 
this purpose. Please see attached Change Order Request for additional details. 

Status: Pending Board Approval 

Fiscal Impact: Contract Cost increase of $5,900, to a total of $186,010. Funding available through 
Project Contingency; costs to be covered by State CTE Grant Funds 

Educational Impact: Will assist CTE-Agricultural Program at Hamilton HS 

Recommendation: District Staff and Consultants recommend approval 

 

Page 28



Page 29



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 23, 2020 

 
5:00 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only via Zoom:  
5:00 p.m.  Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below via Zoom (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89413880755?pwd=djI1SEs0YXFjcE44KzQ5TUVRalRVQT09 
 
Meeting ID: 894 1388 0755 
Passcode: 6hY6QF 
 
Dial by Phone: 
        +1 929 436 2866 
 
Meeting ID: 894 1388 0755 
Passcode: 531897 
 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 5:02 p.m. 
 

_√_ Gabriel Leal, President  _√_ Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk _√_ Rod Boone 

_√_ Genaro Reyes   _√_ Ray Odom 

 
2.0 IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: 

 
3.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board 

may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item. None. 
 

4.0 ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters. 
a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment, 

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees. 
b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation. Government Code section 54957, subdivision (b)(1). Superintendent. 
c. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, 

Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations. 
d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified 

School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CV01394. 
e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School, 

approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency 
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: 
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment. 

f. Conference with labor Negotiator Gov. Code sec. 54957.6, subd. (a). Agency designated representative: Dr. 
Jeremy Powell; Employee Organization: Hamitlon Teachers Association. 

 
Report out action taken in closed session. No action. 

 
5.0 PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:  Lead by Mr. Reyes. 

  

Page 30

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89413880755?pwd%3DdjI1SEs0YXFjcE44KzQ5TUVRalRVQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1600115793250000&usg=AOvVaw32-oC3IlU3Si4exG02jH1I


 
 

6.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

7.0 COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS: 
a. Board Member Comments/Reports. 

i. Mr. Lower thanked all of the teachers and also thanks the Koehnen and Millar families for their 
marquee donations. If you see the donor’s say thanks. 

ii. Mr. Reyes also thanked the teachers and especially Blanca Godinez. 
iii. Mr. Odom acknowledged the disruption to curriculum, finance, facilities, etc. by the pandemic that 

has stretched to six months now and commended the faculty, staff, administrators and everyone 
working together to meet our student needs. 

iv. Mr. Leal sent congratulations and thanks to all the collaborators and donors of the marquee. He also 
gave special thanks to Mr. Lower who made it all happen. 

b. District Reports (written) 
i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (p. 4) 

ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (p. 5) 
iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (p.6) 

c. Principal and Dean of Student Reports (written) 
i. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal (p. 7) 

ii. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students (p. 8) 
iii. Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal (p. 9) 
iv. Sylvia Robles, Adult School (p. 11) 

d. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman (p. 12) 
e. Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (p. 13) 

i. Dr.Powell expressed his enthusiasm for the new marquee and commended the teachers, support staff 
and administrators for serving our students very well with Distance Learning. 

ii. Reviewed the status of waivers and the Glenn County Department of Public Health. 
iii. Our K-5 waiver has been approved at the County level and is now on its way to the State. 
iv. Provided update on negotiations. 
v. Gave thanks to the board for their support. 

vi. Mr. Reyes asked if right now have kids been allowed on campus. 
vii. Dr. Powell said that we can have small cohorts and have had a total of 6 kinders last Friday. 

viii. Currently working with the teachers unit. 
ix. Mr. Reyes noted that Mr. Oseguera’s report indicated that they can bring IEP students onto camps and 

asked if that was happening. 
x. Mr. Oseguera replied that they have been doing this for about four weeks now and that it has helped 

with students being present and engaged Mondays-Thursdays. He emphasized that all students are 
temperature checked as well as verbal and visual checks. 

xi. Ms. DeVries asked where the District is with testing. 
xii. Dr. Powell replied that Glenn County Department of Public Health says staff needs to be tested every 

two months once the waiver is approved. 
xiii. Mr. Oseguera added that all students and staff wear masks and sanitize. 

 
8.0  PRESENTATIONS: 

a.  None 
 

9.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
a. None 

 
10.0   INFORMATION ITEMS: 

a. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years (p. 14) 

Page 31



i. Dr. Powell reviewed enrollment and explained that Ms. Hamman will cover attendance and funding at 
the Special Board meeting on 10/07/2020 for the First Unaudited Actuals. 

ii. Mr. Leal asked how the district keeps track of enrollment/attendance.  
iii. Dr. Powell replied that attendance is taken each morning and a note is made if the student is active or 

not active. High School attendance is taken each period. 
b. Bond Satus (Fund 21) Update (p.15)  
c. Update on Roy Boone Memorial Barn Project – Mike Cannon (p. 18) 

i. Mike Cannon reviewed the updated handout for the project and said the project is on schedule and 
under budget. 

ii. Mr. Lower asked how much under budget. 
iii. Mr. Cannnon said we are about $30,000 under budget in authorized expenditures. 

d. HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update – Mike Cannon (p. 19) 
i. Mr.Cannon reviewed the permitting status 

ii. The draft schedule to start EdSpec at the end of October and bring final report to April Board Meeting 
iii. Mr. Odom indicated that the EdSpec study involves looking at the facility design and that the staff 

should be involved. 
iv. Mr. Cannon said that EdSpec is for design guidelines, not the actual design. 

 
11.0   DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

a. Rose Garden Update 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed discussions about upgrading the Memorial Rose Garden and what direction we 

should go. 
ii. Can we use some of that space for parking and move the roses but keep them in tact and honor the 

Hamilton City Women’s Club? 
iii. Mr. Lower asked if there was a design. 
iv. Dr. Powell answered that possibly a row of roses near the street, then the monument and then 

additional parking. 
v. Mr. Oseguera commented on the history of the rose garden and would like to have it preserved as 

there have been community efforts in the past to do so. He added that he felt the community 
members should have a voice as well. 

vi. Mr. Odom agreed that there should be a row of roses across the front but that the design has been 
high maintenance and needs to be changed. He would like to keep the intent of the rose garden and 
plaque but also increase the much needed parking at Ella Barkley High School. 

 
12.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 

heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. Ms. DeVries commented as the CSEA president that the Elementary School Office Assistant position appears to 
be reduced to a temporary position and that she has concerns about that. 

b. Dr. Powell said that the person currently in this position is going to be moving to different position within the 
District and we are looking to fill that position. It is full-time and benefited through December 31, 2020 
depending on Learning Loss Mitigation Funds and budget, the position will continue full-time and fully 
benefited through the end of the year.  

c. Ms. DeVries said that this position was not a part of the layoffs last year. 
d. Dr. Powell said he would sit down and discuss this further with Ms. DeVries. 
e. Mr. Langan asked if the Learning Loss Mitigation Funds that were approved for a six month period of August to 

December, would they be pro-rated October to December? And if these funds are continued through the end 
of the year, will they get doubled? 

f. Dr. Powell answered that the Learning Loss Mitigation Funds are federal funds that expire 12/31/2020. We 
hope they will be expanded and added to with next round of stimulus funds. The funds we have now must be 
spent by 12/31/2020. Also, that was our expected budget. Budgets change. Yes, they would be pro-rated. 

g. Mr. Langan asked if the Mitigation Funds would be visited each month. 
h. Dr. Powell said that he and Ms. Hamman would be reviewing what has been spent and how best to use what is 

left.  
i. Ms. Johnson asked if the Office Assistant Position at the Elementary School would still be an 8 hour benefited 

position as she felt the flyer said it would be 4 hours and temporary. 
j. Dr. Powell said that he would review and revisit this issue as it is a full time position. 
k. Ms. DeVries asked if it is a shared position. 

Page 32



l. Dr. Powell replied that it is not a shared position. 
m. Ms. Reyes asked if the $15,000 budgeted for Community Liaison position is for the rest of the year and is it just 

four hours a day. 
n. Dr. Powell replied that the $15,000 is budgeted through the end of the year full-time through 12/31/2020. 
o. Mr. Joksch said that regarding the custodial position, the potential new hire accepted a position somewhere 

else. 
p. Mr. Oseguera commented that today is the 30th day of education at HHS and he would like to commend the 

faculty and teachers for continued outreach to the benefit of the students who are also working very hard. 
Also, parent teacher conferences were held on 9/17/2020 and wanted to commend Rowan Dietle, Cristina 
Rios, Maria Reyes and Kelly Langan for their support. 

q. Adrian Zaragoza commented as a parent his happiness with teacher engagement and sends thanks.Would like 
to see slow progress toward in-class instruction. 

 
13.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Adopt Learning Continuity and Attendance Plan for 2020-21 School year (p. 21) 
i. Mr. Odom asked if this plan replaces the LCAP this year. Is that the successor to the old LEAP? 

ii. Dr. Powell replied that the LCAP is the plan to spend additional state funds for students in need. 
Motion to adopt by Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Lower. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Approve HUSD Job Description for Special Education Paraprofessional (p. 60) 
c. Approve HUSD Job Description for Licensed Vocational Nurse (LVN) (p. 64) 

Motion to approve 13b and 13c by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
d. Approve MOU The Boys & Girls Club of the North Valley-GCOE-HUSD (p. 68) 

i. Dr. Powell clarified that in the past the District paid $40,000 for additional students and we are not 
including those in this MOU. 

ii. This is fully funded by the ASES Grant. 
iii. Expect an MOU at the next board meeting for how we are going to use Learning Loss Mitigation Funds 

to support the students, not just after school but also during the day. 
iv. Ms. Reyes asked if it is just $40,000 from Learning Loss Mitigation Funds or if additional will be added. 
v. Dr. Powell replied that we budgeted $40,000 for Learning Loss and that looking at the services 

needed, it could be more or less but that’s the target number. 
Motion to approve MOU by Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Lower. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
e. CSBA Policies Review and Adopt 2st Readings (p. 76) 

i. Board Policy (updated) and (new) Exhibit 3555: Nutrition Program Compliance to refect new state 
regulations 

1. Recommend Option 1 
ii. Administrative Regulation 4030: Nondiscrimination in Employment updated to reflect new federal 

regulations 
iii. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11: Sexual Harassment updated to 

refect new federal regulations  
iv. Administrative Regulation (new) 4119.12/4219.12/4319.12: Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint 

Procedures 
v. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5141.22: Infection Diseases updated to reflect new law  

vi. Administrative Regulation 5145.3: Nondiscrimination/Harassment updated to reflect new federal 
regulations  

vii. Board Policy (updated) and Exhibit 5145.6: Parental Notifications updated to reflect new law (p. 104) 

Page 33



viii. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5145.7: Sexual Harassment updated to reflect new federal 
law  

ix. Administrative Regulation (new) 5145.71: Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures reflecting 
new federal regulations.  

x. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6142.7: Physical Education and Activity updated to reflect 
new law  

xi. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6159: Individualized Education Program updated to reflect 
new law  

xii. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6159.1: Procedural Safeguards for Special Education 
updated to reflect new state regulations 

xiii. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6159.2: Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency 
Services for Special Education updated to reflect new law 

Motion to adopt the CSBA policies as above by Mr. Boone 2nd  by Mr. Lower. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: absent on this vote 

Odom: AYE  

 
f. Public disclosure of tentative agreement with Hamilton Teachers Association. The EERA requires Hamilton USD 

to disclose to the public at a Board meeting the major provisions of a negotiated agreement wth an exclusive 
representative of its employees. (p. 82) 

i. Dr. Powell reviewed the handout. 
Motion to approve tentative agreement by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

14.0   CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one 
motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public 
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda 
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. 

a. Minutes from Regular Board Meeting on Wednesday, August 26, 2020 (p. 83) 
b. Minutes from Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, August 26, 2020 (p. 89) 
c. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Agenda, September 8, 2020 (p. 91) 
d. Consolidated Application Spring 2020 (p. 101) 
e. Teacher Consent Forms for 2020-21 School Year: Hamilton Elementary School and Hamilton High School (p. 

109) 
f. Warrants and Expenditures (p. 115) 
g. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually). 

i. Out 
1. Hamilton Elementary School 

a. none 
2. Hamilton High School 

a. none 
ii. In 

1. Hamilton Elementary School 
a. none 

2. Hamilton High School 
a. 9th x 2 

h. Personnel Actions as Presented: 
i. New hires: 

1. Jonathan Romano Short-Term, District Custodian HUSD 
Position Ending December 2020 

 
ii. Resignations/Retirement: 

1. Sophia Langevin  Multiple Subject Teacher, Long HUSD 
Term Substitute – Position  
Ending December 2020 

Page 34



 
1.      Motion to adopt the consent agenda by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

15.0   ADJOURNMENT: 7:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

X
Wendell Lower

HUSD Board Clerk

 
 
 
 
 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

Superintendent

 

Page 35



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, September 23, 2020 

 
5:00 p.m.  Public session for purposes of opening the Regular Meeting only via Zoom:  
5:00 p.m.  Regular Meeting Closed session begins (For Board Only) 
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m. via Facebook Live or Zoom (see below) 
  *Special Board Meeting at conclusion of Regular Meeting at same zoom link: 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89413880755?pwd=djI1SEs0YXFjcE44KzQ5TUVRalRVQT09 
 
Meeting ID: 894 1388 0755 
Passcode: 6hY6QF 
 
Dial by Phone: 
        +1 929 436 2866 
 
Meeting ID: 894 1388 0755 
Passcode: 531897 
 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 7:23 p.m. 
 

_√_ Gabriel Leal, President  _√_ Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk _√_ Rod Boone 

_√_ Genaro Reyes   _√_ Ray Odom 

 
 

2.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Boone. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

3.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 
None 

 
4.0   ACTION ITEMS: 

a. Approve HUSD State Preschool Return to School Policies 
i. Dr. Powell reviewed how the preschool rules are different from K-12 for reopening. 

ii. HTA supports the opening of the preschool. 
iii. Margrit Vogelsang said she is ready and excited to have the students come back. 
iv. Mr. Leal asked if we are the only ones open. 
v. Dr. Powell said that the Infant and Toddler Center is open and that the pre-school on the Elementary 

campus is planning to open. 
vi. Ms. Vogelsang said that Orland and Willows are open. 

vii. Mr. Oseguera asked how the preschool students have been Zooming. 
viii. Ms. Vogelsang said that they have devices or phones. 

Page 36

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89413880755?pwd%3DdjI1SEs0YXFjcE44KzQ5TUVRalRVQT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1600115793250000&usg=AOvVaw32-oC3IlU3Si4exG02jH1I


ix. Mr. Oseguera offered his support to the preschool.  
Motion to approve the policies by Mr. Reyes 2nd  by Mr. Odom. Motion Carried 5-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: AYE Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 

5.0   ADJOURNMENT: 7:28 p.m. 
 
 

X
Wendell Lower

HUSD Board Clerk

 
 
 
 

X
Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

Superintendent

 

Page 37



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 7, 2020 

 
6:00 p.m.  Open Public Session of Special Board Meeting 

 

As authorized by the Governor’s Emergency Executive Orders issued on March 12 and 17, 2020, the Hamilton Unified 
School District Board of Education will conduct Board of Education meetings by video conference until further notice. 
Please join the meeting by attending the livestream via Facebook Live on the District’s Facebook page or through the 
below Zoom link or dial by phone as listed below: 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000117097?pwd=S2VhOTVZSEc3bFJjYkNSdkNVaVdGZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 850 0011 7097 
Passcode: N5t6VL 
 
Dial by Phone: 
        +1 312 626 6799 
Meeting ID: 850 0011 7097 
Passcode: 850970 

 

 
1.0 OPENING BUSINESS: 

a. Call to order and roll call at 6:01 p.m. 
 

_√_ Gabriel Leal, President  _√_ Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk __ Rod Boone 

_√_ Genaro Reyes   _√_ Ray Odom 

 
 

2.0 ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M) 
Motion to adopt the agenda by Mr. Odom 2nd  by Mr. Lower. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
 Flag salute lead by Mr. Lower 
 

3.0   PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be 
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon. 

a. None 
 

4.0   ACTION ITEMS: 
a. Adopt Board Resolution 20-21-104 GANN Limit (page 2) 

i. Ms. Hamman reviewed the resolution and GANN limit calculation 
ii. Mr. Lower asked that since we are showing a dollar amount will there be changes next year 

1. Ms. Hamman explained that there is no fiscal impact 
iii. Mr. Odom commented that this has been in effect since 1979 
iv. Mr. Leal asked Mr. Odom to explain some history of the GANN limit 

1. Mr. Odom reviewed this history of the GANN limit 
Motion to adopt the GANN Limit by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 4-0 

Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
b. Review and Approve 2019-20 Unaudited Actuals (page 6) 

Page 38

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85000117097?pwd%3DS2VhOTVZSEc3bFJjYkNSdkNVaVdGZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1600116042012000&usg=AOvVaw00ZFY8IAHjzrEbHr598Jpf


i. Dr. Powell reviewed the budget history last year and noted that this reflects the 2019-20 school year 
ii. The things we did for the 2020-21 school year won’t be reflected here. 

iii. Dr. Powell highly commended Ms. Hamman for her hard work. 
iv. Ms. Hamman confirmed this report is for our 2019-20 Unaudited Acutals 
v. Mr. Odom noted that we receive many reports throughout the year that are estimates but that this 

report, for the unaudited actuals, can be relied upon for accurate figures. 
vi. Mr. Lower thanked Ms. Hamman for the quick glance summary sheet. 

vii. Mr. Leal also appreciated the format of the presentation. 
viii. Ms. Hamman reviewed the budget summary and budget noting that there will be an audit on 

November 9th. 
ix. Ms. Reyes asked if the preschool grant was recurring and how much it was. 

1. Ms. Hamman replied that the special ed early intervention preschool grant is a one time grant 
and was unexpected and was around $72,000. 

x. Mr. Odom asked if the ending balance was better because of that 
1. Ms. Hamman confirmed yes. 

xi. Mr. Odom commended the staff and administration on monitoring the budget and expenditures. 
xii. Mr. Leal also commended managing an inherited budget. 

xiii. Dr. Powell agreed that this is encouraging. 
xiv. Mr. Lower applauded teachers for their assistance curbing expenses. 
xv. Ms. Hamman continued to review other district fund ending balances. 

xvi. Mr. Lower asked if the goal is to make the cafeteria fund 13 zero. 
1. Ms. Hamman replied that the goal is not to make the fund balance zero but to make our 

expenditures and our revenues wash to zero to keep our fund balance. 
xvii. Mr. Lower asked what the limit of our fund balance is. 

1. Ms. Hamman replied three months operating expenditures is recommended for fund 
balance. 

xviii. Mr. Leal asked if that money in the cafeteria fund is only for the cafeteria. 
1. Ms. Hamman replied yes. 

xix. Mr. Odom noted that we have a nice balance in Adult Ed and that maybe we could use that to expand 
our offerings. Also, under deferred maintenance, there must be some projects there. 

1. Dr. Powell replied that for each of those we are looking into what needs to be done to better 
serve the community. 

xx. Mr. Oseguera commented that the painting of the gym was long overdue and that some of those 
deferred maintenance funds could be used there. 

1. Ms. Hamman replied that this is number one on our deferred maintenance list. 
xxi. Mr. Lower asked if the CEA form is always like that so that we have to file the expemption. 

1. Ms. Hamman confirmed that we had to file the exemption last year also. 
2. Dr. Powell said that this calculation has been skewed a little by the LCFF funding and how it 

comes to us. Most districts in the state are filing that waiver with their county offices. 
xxii. Mr. Odom commented regarding Child Development that 92% of those expenditures are for 

employees and benefits. Almost all that that funding is eaten up by salaries. With step and column 
increases and COLAs that could turn into a deficit. I don’t know what we can do about that. I know we 
have a one time grant this time. 

1. Ms. Hamman replied that a lot of the time in the past we have had to contribute to that fun 
from our general fund. We didn’t have to this year because of the grant. 

xxiii. Ms. Reyes asked regarding classified salaries showing an increase, where did that come from? 
1. Ms. Hamman replied that this is a comparison between what happened in 2019-20 and 2020-

21. Probably step and column for the positives and layoffs for the negatives. 
xxiv. Ms. Reyes asked under certificated salaries, was that a reduction in positions? 

1. Ms. Hamman replied that this was probably from having an administrative position reduced 
during the layoffs last year. 

xxv. Ms. Reyes asked if page 50 is similar to page 18 with classified supervisor salaries? 
1. Ms. Hamman replied that page 50 is from fund 13, cafeteria salaries. 

xxvi. Ms. Reyes asked where the increase came from. 
1. Ms. Hamman replied that the new director was accidentally coded to classified support then 

changed when he became supervisory and the coding changed. 
xxvii. Ms. Reyes asked about the $50,000 on page 66 of the report. 

Page 39



1. Ms. Hamman answered that Form 17 is the special reserve account and we are paying back 
part of that $350,000 each year into the bond fund most likely from this fund unless we have 
enough funds in the general fund. 

Motion to approved the 2019-20 unaudited actuals by Mr. Lower 2nd  by Mr. Reyes. Motion Carried 4-0 
Leal: AYE Lower: AYE 

Boone: absent Reyes: AYE 

Odom: AYE  

 
5.0   ADJOURNMENT: 6:46 p.m. 

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55




